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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Reference and Administrative Details (continued)
Directory of Academics

St Clare's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy
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Saint Francis Catholic Primary School

Holy Cross Peimary School, A Catholic Voluntary Academy, Whitwick
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

This Trustees' Report includes the additional content required of Targer charitics.

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report ot the charitable company
for the year ended 31 August 2020, The annual report serves the pumposes of both a frustees' report, and a directors' report
under company law.

St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust (the Trust) operates 17 Catholic Primary Academies and 4 Cutholic
Secondary Academics in Leicester and Leicestershire. The academies have combined pupils on rofl of 8,502 in the sehool
census on 16 January 2020,

Structure, governance and manngement

Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guaranice and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s Memonandum and Articles of
Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust, The Trustees of the Trust are also the Directors of the charilable
company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy
Trust. :

Detils of the trustees who served during the year, and o the date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference
and Administrative Details on page 1.
Members' liability

Each Member of the charitable company underakes o contribute to the asscls of the charitable ¢ompany in the event of it
being wound up while they are 8 Mcmber, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such amount as may bhe
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities conteacted hefare they ceased to be a Member.

Trustecs’ indemaities

The Trust has purchascd the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Ammangement (RPA) which is extended to indemnify
Trustecs.

Mecthad of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Board of Dircetors ix constituted ax kaid down in its Articles of Association. The Diacesan Bishop appoints Foundation
Directors for a teem of 4 years (or shorter i specified at the time of sppointment).

Policics and procedures udopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocese provides a significant amount of (raining for Trustees that Trustecs are expected (o
attendl. The training takes place throughout the year on i viriety of govemance topics.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Organisatlonal structure
The Board is responsible for the core functions:

- ensuring clarity of vision, Catholic ethos and strategic direction;

- holding the Chief Exccutive Officer (CEQ), who is also the Accounting Officer, to account for the educational performance
of the Trust's academics and their pupils, and the performance management of staft;

- overseeing the financial performance of the Trust and making sure its money is well spent.

The Board has 5 committees: Standards, Finance & Estates, HR & Stafling, Pay & Performance Management and Audit,

Bach academy hus a Local Governing Body (LGB). The principle role of the LGB is to support and challenge the
Principal/Headteiicher with a focus on the Catholic Life of the peademy, standurds, and the manitoring of the School
Development Plan,

The Board appoints the CEQ, to whom it delegates responsibility for delivery of the vision and strategy, and will hold the CEQ
to account for the conduct and performance of the Trust, including the performance of the academics within the Trust, and for
its finaucial management. In tum, the CEO line manages other senior exceutives and the Principals/Head teachers, sciting their
targets and performance managing them.

The Principal/Head teacher at cach Academy is responsible for the day to day management of the Academy and is manuged by
the CEO but reports to the LGB on matters which have been delegated to it including monitoring and serutiny of the School
Development Plan.

Head weachers have delegated authority 10 approve single items ol expenditure up o £2,000. The Trust approves expenditure
over £2,000 and all stafiing appointments. Board approval is required for expenditure above £50,000.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Diocese provide support and advice regarding pay and remuneration of key management personnel, taking into account
benchmarking data and DIE guidance. All key management personnel are on a pay spine. Progression up the pay spine s
agreed following robust performance management by the Trust’s Pay and Performance Commiittee. Cost of living rises are
aligned with the Local Government nepotiations.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who sere relevant union | Full-time equivalent employee number
officials during the relevant period

6 ' 5.65

Percentage of tinte spent on facllity thme

Percentage of time Number of

cmployees
0% 6
1%-50% R
51%-99% _
100% -
Percentage of pay hill spent on facllity time
2020
[
Provide the total cost of facility time 1.33
Provide the total pay bill 36,944,000
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, caleulated as:  total cost of fwilily time +
lotad pay bill ) x 100 .
Pald trade wnlon activitios
2020
Time spent on paid tride union activitics as a pereentage of total paid ficility tme hours calcolated as: ( totat
hovrs speat on paid trade union getivities by relevant union officials during the relevant period + total paicl
facility time hours ) x 100 88

Related Partics and other Connected Charities and Qrganisations

The Trust has u very close relationship with the Nottingham Roman Catholie Diocese. The Diocese provides (at cost) services
that can anly he delivercd by the Diocese, which provide essential functions fundamental to the religious chmneter and ethos of
the Trust. ’

The Trust also has a very close relationship with the 3 other Catholic Multi Academy Trusts within the Nottingham Diocesc:
s St Ralph Sherwin Catholic Multi Academy Trust
+ Qur Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multt Academy Trust

* St Therese of Lisicux Catholic Multi-Academy Trust

The 4 Teusts have a shared payroll function, shared HR Director and share the costs of the finanee system. This has led to
significant cost savings tor each Trust,

Relevant related party transactions (sinee § April 2019) have been declared 1o (or approval sought from) the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The Trust works with a large number of suppliers and other key stakeholders that are key to achieving the strategic objectives
of the Trust. Regular communication is received from our key funder, the Department for Education, that the Trust
acknowledges and acts on where necessary. We have forged and maintain positive relationships with key suppliers with the
sim of improving the service (o our academies, Where appropriate, we will meet on a periodic basis with key supplicrs, We
have a policy to pay suppliers within their payment terms or 30 days, assuming our requirement tor a purchase order number to
be quoted on invoices is adhered to,

As a not-for-profit organisation, our academies wlso develop and maintain relationships with their local communities and
Parishes, Some academies have supported community initintives such as food bauks, which during the Covid-19 pandemic
have heen well reccived. Many academies have *parents and friends® associations who work tirclessly mising funds for the
benefit of their local academy, The community and Parish support for our academies is much appreciated by the Board,

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

During the yeir, the Trust provided every employee the opportunity to complete a stafl survey that sought feedback to help
academics and the whole Trust improve. The survey sought responses on i mnge of topics including the Catholic life of the
academy, how individuals felt about work and things that impacted workload, triining and development opportunitics, and
awareness of the whistleblowing arrangements. The Exceutive Leadership and Board hive been able to use the survey results
to continually adapt and improve the Trust,

The Chiel Exceutive Ofticer has regularly recorded video messages for all staff to view providing key updates on the Trust.
Weekly newsletters are sent to each academy with opertional matters that Headteachers disseminate to relevant stafi.

The CMAT carries owt is duties in relation Lo the Equality Act 2010 by:

+ promoting equality of opportunity for disabled people: pupils, stally parents, carers and other people who use the trust or may
wish to

s publishing a disability cquality scheme which clearly identifics the employer responsibility reparding disabled staf, as well
as disabled pupils, governors, parents and visitors.

The CMAT is fortunate to cmploy a talented and dedicated waorktoree. Stally parents and pupils are valuced by what they bring
to the trust community. Al otc staff are commitied to empowering owr students to make positive contribitions by opening
opportunitics to lcaming. The CMAT is committed to prohibit discrimination on the grouwnds of disability in all employment
matters, this includes secking to increase employment opportunities for people who have a disability and to ensure that its
recruitment and sclection processes are fully accessible. Applications for posts are monitored for compliance with the Equality
Act and reasonable adjustments made for staff where ideatified,

All CMAT staff, students, visitors and contractors arc expected to treat people with disabilities with respect. [f an individual
feels that they have been discriminated against or harassed on the grounds of disability, they will be encouraged to report the
incident and will be supported in doing so.

In the built enviconment, where building projects and alterations are boing undertaken, we will always seek to identify and
develop in arcas to be more welcoming and enabling to people with disabilities.

Objectives and activitics

Objects and aims

The Trust’s objective is restricted to the advancement of the Catholic religion in the Diocese by such means as the Diocesan
Bishop may think fit and proper. In particular, the establishing, maintoaining, carrying on, managing and developing of Catholic
schools conducted in accordance with the principles, and subject to the regulations and discipline of the Catholic Church,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities

2019-20 was an extraordinary year because of the coronavirus pandemic, and all of the associated changes, pressures and
challenges. As well as these negative aspects, the situation has provided a series of interesting opportunities, not least around
remote and online leaming for pupils. Coping with the challenges has required exceptional agility, adaptability and resilience
trom our stafY, especially our Headteachers and senior leaders. Teachers have had to respond with speed to rapidly changing
government guidance and, alongside this, we have had to deal with the genuine, deep-seated anxieties of stafl” and parents
alike. Unswiprisingly, this has led 1o a year of strategic promise building on the strong start of 2018-19, tuming into a series of
tactical reactions to the fust-moving situation around us,

Our key objectives for the year included:
‘Core business’: 'To improve the life chances of ull young people within the Trust’s academiess by -

« Maintaining, supporting and nurturing the Catholic life of the seademies within the Trust, including the development of
chaplaincy.

» Lnsuring the highest standards of safeguarding and child protection for all young peopie within the Trust's academics.

s Developing and embedding sustainable, productive subject and aspeet networks ensuring the continual professional
development of stafY within the Trust.

+ Ensuring that curriculum development across cach of the academics was appropriote, robust and efieetive in meeting the
needs of our pupils, and the demands of the new Ofsted framework,

* Supporting the Leicester Catholic Teaching School Alliance (LCTSA).

¢ Developing and implementing a strategy for alipnment & consistency in specific aspects of academy leadership and
management, including but not limited to: self-cvaluation; SEND provision; suppost to improve life chances of the most
disadvantaged pupils; curriculum development; and, reporting to LGBs.

+ Continuing to direct and support LGBs in adjusting to their role within the Trust structure, including the practical
implementation of the Scheme of Delegation.

+ Embedding a sustainable, reliable and consistent practice of school improvement work through the role of Director of
Performance & Standards, including but not limited to: academy visits, monitoring of standards and providing advice;
reporting to academy leadets and focal governors; creating and sharing of Trust-wide resources; the Teaching & Learning
confercnce (January 2019); supporting new Headteachers; and, working with the LCTSA to provide high quality training,

* Embedding the *School lmprovement leadteachers’ and ‘Sccondary Maths Director® into their roles within the broader
school improvement function of the CMAT.

+ Embedding the Director of Safeguarding into her role and ensuring clarity swith Headteachers wround training, monitoring and
supervision with regard to safeguarding.

* Ensuring that acadetnivs are supporied in preparation for both Diocesan Canonical and Ofsted inspections.

*Esscntial subsidiary business’: To facilitate and enabie the fmprovement of the life chances of all young people within
the MAT s academics by «

» Embedding the fully centralised financial functions of the ncademies within the Trust, thereby removing this workload from
acadcmies and achieving both greater consistency in approach, and cconomives of scale,

* Fully centralising payroll provision in partnership with the other 3 Trusts within the Catholic Diocese of Nottingham to
achicve preater consistency und considerable saving for scademics.

+ Embedding the fully centralised HR provision for academies in partnership with the other 3 Trusts within the Catholic
Diocese of Nottingham to give confidence and clarity to academy leaders and managers, to ensure cftective implementiation of
Catholic Fduuation Service policies, and (o provide CMAT-wide scrvices such as the new Employce Assistanee Programme,

» Developing and embedding the Business Services model to weademics in order to remove non-cducational responsibilitics
from academy lenders, therchy crealing time and resource 1o focus on pupil welfare, teaching & leaming snd staff’
development. These services include, but are not limited to: the negotiation & rencwal of contracts to secure best value for
money; procurcment; site development, maintenance and capital investment; health & safety audit and training; the
cstablishment of non-cducational stafl networks (Office Managers, Site Managers, 1T Network managers, Catering Managers),
and, the oversight of 1CT across the Trust’s academies.

» Ensuring that best value was achieved around procurcment, especiatly through utilising the scale of our organisation,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Public benefit
The Trust has complied with the Charitics Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charity Commission’s public benefit guidance
when exercising powers or dutics to which the guidance is relevant.

In particular, the Trust has provided Catholic education to over 8,500 pupils throughowt Leicester and Leicestershire, and
enabled the academy buildings and sparting facilitics o be used by the public,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Achievements and performance
Impact of Covid-19

The key implications educationally of the coronavirus pandemic were that pupils missed approximitely half of the academic
year. Qur academies responded quickly in establishing online leaming platforms, and in finding creative ways to overcome the
lack of technology in some pupils’ homes. As such, learning wis masimised despite the fimitations. Clearly, from the point of
view of the “nommal” assessments at the end of Key Stages 2, 4 and §, we were conipletely reliant on teacher assessment this
year, as were all schaals and acadermics across the country,

Pupil outcomes:

Key Stage 2 (KS2):

All dawa from 2020 is based on Teacher Assessment and progress scores are based on the Fisher Family Trust database
analyses.

« KS2 Reading: 11717 pritary academics were in the middle 50% progress band nationally; 6 were in the 10p 25%, of which 3
were In the top 5%; 1 ac.uluny was in the bottom 25%

* K82 Writing: 11/17 primary academics were in the middle 50% progress band nationally; 6 were in the top 25%, of which 3
werce in the top 5%; | academy was in the bottom 25%

+ K§2 Maths; 11/17 primary academics were in the middle 50% progress band nationally; 6 were in the top 25%; | academy
was in the bottom 25%

Key Stage 4 (KS4):

All data from 2020 is based on Teacher Assessment.

« Attainment 8 measures show improvement for all 4 academies in 2020, The overall Trust position improved from 4.8 in 2019
10 5.1 in 2020,

* *Basics’ at 41 and §+ improved In all academies in 2020,

Key Stage S (KSS):
» 2 out of 3 academies improved their position in 2020, with the other maintaining the 2019 position.
¢ The progress measures (Level 3 Value Added) were all in the "average' category.

Catholic life:

+ Four academics were inspected in the Trust during 2019-20, three of which were decined to be ‘Good’, whilst onc *Required
Improvement’. Signiticantly, the three *Good’ academics received the judgement of ‘Owtstanding’ for the Catholic Life
component,

» The CMAT Lead Lay Chaplain has developed significant resources and stafl’ training modules to support academies during
the year, and maintained a very visible presence onfine during the tockdown period. He hias strengthencd the CMATs tics with
the Diocesan Youth Service.

* A very suceesstul Trust Feast Day was celehmied in January 2020 iovolving 1,500 young people from al) academices within
the Trust. This featured a significant input from CAFQD, a key charitable partner of the CMAT.

Sufegunrding:

+ 'The introduction of a Director of Safeguarding has had a very positive eflect on the CMA'T, and has meant that we con offer
*in house' Safer Recruitment, Designated Safeguarding Leader (DSL) and goveror training across the CMAT, This has
reccived very strong evaluations. In particular, this has meant that the training can be delivered within our Catholic conext.

* All DSLs within our academics are supported through the CMAT DSL network.

» Headteachers and DSLs have been unanimous in their positive feedback and appreciation of !Iu s:gmﬁwnlly cithanced
Safeguarding provision this year. In particular, immediate access to advice and support has given confidence in this key area.
Even though the introduction of the service was too recent to include in our Headteacher survey in December 2019, a number
of Headteachers stated that Saleguarding support and provision was “a strength of the CMAT”,



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Subject networks

* The following Primary Networks have confinued this year: Deputy/Assistant Headteachers; English; Maths; Science;
SENDCos.

s The fotlowing Secondary Subjeet Netwarks have continued this year: RE (enhanced by a diocese-funded Coordinator this
year); English; Maths; Science; Humanitics; MFL; Music; Pupil Premium; data; SEND; Carcers.

« [u addition, the Vice Prinecipals leading on Teaching & Leaming in the four secondaries have continued in their network
based on observing and sharing the best practice from cach ol the academics, along with auditing provision in cach other's
acadenics.

+ Impact - building on the suceess of Year 1, the networks have become more autonomous {n Year 2 with less directian given
by the DPSs, and more reliance on stafl” within them implementing the broad principles of curriculum planning which are
agreed at CMAT level. Feedback on the involvement in networks, especially form the point of view of professional leaming, Is

strong.
Lelcester Catholie ‘Feaching Schoot Alllance

¢ Delegates from all CMAT academies and 36 academies/schools from outside the CMAT (this figure was 30 last year), have
attended LCTSA courses this year- mostly primary, some sccondary and the Leicester PRU. The total number of delegates who
have attended or are duc to attend a course this yecar is 2042 (1026 last year), A total of 72 courses have been delivered,
cquating to 44.5 full days of CPD. 27 courses were cancelled due to COVID-19,

*» Courses have been presented by members of the CMAT Exccutive Team; the TS Director; expert teachers from academics
across the CMAT and exteral providers from institutions and companies from across the UK,

* Courses have been delivered to govemors, Headteachers, senior leaders, teachers and support staff.

* Courses have covered: reading, writing, maths, science, EYFS, pupil premium, SEND, data analysis, senior leadership,
subject and middle leadership, computing, PE, being a goveror in a Catholic academy, safeguarding, Prevent, Team Teach,
curriculum & timetabling (Secondary) and improving vocabulary.

* The LCTSA has worked with a range of outside bodies including: Diocese of Nottingham Education Service; Nottingham
Catholic TSA, Lvicester City Teaching Schools Group, EMSYHTSA, Leicester & Leicestershire SCITT and the Leicestershire
TSAs.

+ We have intraduced a primiary NQT programme in association with the Leicester & Leicestershire SCITT which is difterent
to any other programme running in the county, and enables us 10 ensure that new teachers are specifically trained in the context
of our Catholic academics.

* Impact - 99% of delegates reported that the course they had attended would have a positive impact on the outcome of pupils
back at the academy (92% last ycar). 98.6% of delegates reported that the course they had attended would enhance their
practice (96% tast year).
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continucd)

Strategic Report

Use of central schoo) improvement resources

*» Around £170k of eentral funding has been budgeted and spent on school improvement activities during 2019-20. This has
included:

* The January Leadership Conference involving all senior and midkdle leaders from across the Trust, The keynote speaker was
Steve Radelifte who gave a thought-provoking and inspiring presentation on *Pure Leadership®, along with a wide range of
workshops run, in the main, by members of stafY from within our academics.

* The Trust Feast Day celebrations at the end of January involving 1,500 young people and staft from all 21 academies in the
Trust. Mass was concelebrted and led by Bishop Patrick, and academies shared pendants featuring their seademy prayet,
badge and photographs with cach other. Each academy also received a tree to plant fn their grounds. '

« Supporting all of the nctwork activity outlined above.

» Supporting all of the Feadteacher monthly mectings and support.

* The Trust has introduced additional roles to support in school improvement in 2019-20: 3 primary School Improvement
Heads (Sitls); a sccondary CMAT Director of Maths; and the Director of Safeguarding.

¢ The Trust has engaged the services of an Educational Psychologist for all academies. This service has covered stafY training,
pupil assessment and report writing and prepaeation and support for EHCP bids.

* Impact - stafl’ evaluations from the Leadership Conference were very strong indeed; the conteat and impact of the sessions
were very positively viewed; the Feast Day mass was a great success bringing together young peaple from the Trust academies
and developing the spiritual links between the academics. The Siitls and Director of Maths have significantly increased school
improvement capacity. Feedback from Headteachers and secondary Heads of Maths demanstrates a consistently positive
impact from the work of these colleagues. The Educational Psychology scrvice has been universally welcomed by
Headteachers, especially given the paucity of service available previously in many cases.

Preparation for inspection

* There were four Ofsted inspections during the year: all academics retained their 'Good’ rating.

Key financial perforinance indicators

KPl Tavpel Actual 2019/2020
Current Ratio (current assels divided by corrent liabilities) Gireater than 10 ERE

Stafl costs as & % of income I.ess than 80% 80.7%

Reserves (days) (reserves divided by approx. daily expenditure) Minimum 18 days 28.0

The Trust has maintained a good level of liquidity aad cash reserves throughout the year. Stafting costs are slightly higher than
the KPI and work is ongoing to ensure that staffing levels are appropriate and affordable.

Going concern

Afler making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has udequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foresecable future. For this reason, il conlinues to adopt the golng concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policics.

Financial implications for the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic are difficult to quantify. Our academies are incurring circa £15,000
a month exceptional costs such as cleaning products and cquipment, additional cleaning, and additional stafting to enable
different lunch-breaks to take place / covering stafl’ who have to sclf-isolate at home. This does not 1ake into account loss of
income such as catering and breakfast clubs. The Trust will apply for Government financial support if' it is made available and
we qualify. However, the Trust holds sufficient reserves that these additional costs can be absorbed without impacting Going
Concern,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)
Strategic Report

Promating the success af the Trust

Trust Directors recognise that our academies, Stalf and Pupils have a sigoiticant effect on the overall success of the Trust. The
Trust works very closely with cach Headteacher on strategies to improve education performance and employee satisfaction.
The Chief’ Executive Officer will regularly write or provide a video message for all staff on rclevant topics, along with
providing robust support for academies with any adverse press interest by way of a Trust statement,

We intraduce initiatives to help every academy to be the *academy of choice” for lacal communitics, and for oure Trust to he ian
*employer of choice’, Initiatives include showeasing the excellent work and outcomes at our academics and being a caring and
understunding employer in a positive enviconment of expecting high stafi performance,

The Trust's decisions are focussed on continually improving educational standards, decreasing the nunber of vacant places in
our academies and having a high pecforming happy workforee.

Financlal review

Most of the Trust’s income is obtained from the Department Tor Education in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted 1o particular purposes. Around 80% of income is spent on stalling, with the remaining 20% speat on maintenance,
educational resources and staff tmining. This cxpenditure enables the Trust to fulfil its objective of providing Catholic
education to over 8,500 pupils, for example by enabling students to be taughit by qualificd teachers and supported by teaching
assistans, premises staf)’ and adminisinative stafl. The funding cnables the academies to be equipped with ICT and other
resources that enhance the leaming environment., The grants and associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statement of financial activities.

The Trust also receives Condition Improvement Funding for fixed assets from the Department for Education via the Diocese.
This funding cnables academy buildings to be improved and larger maintenance work undertaken. The grants are shown in the
restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities, The restricted fixed asset fund is reduced by annual
depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

The Covid-19 pandemic has created significant financial uncertainty for the Trust. Government financind support has been
reccived to support with some exceptional costs together with the HMRC fudlough grant to support the costs ol employees who
were funded from non-Government sowrees (e.g. for parent-funded break fast clubs and in-house entering). We have supported
suppliers by making payments under the public sector procurement policy note 02/20. Some academics have had a significant
short-fall in lettings income, but cqually some costs have been saved as a result of academies not being epen for all pupils for
part of the year. .

The combined restricted general funds, excluding pension reserves, plus unrestricted funds show an in-year surplus of £66,000,
The actual reserves (rostricted general funds, oxcluding pension teserves, plus unrestricted reserves) as at 31 August 2020 was
£2,889,000.
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St Thomas A-quinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Reserves palicy

The Trusl's “free reserves™ are its funds afler excluding restricted funds, Free reserves are therefore the resources the Trust has
or can make available 1o spend for any or all of the Trust’s purposes once it has met its commitments and covered its other
planned expenditure. More specifically, free reserves represent income to the Trust which can be spent at the discretion of the
Board in furtherance of any of the Trust"s objects but which has not yet spent, committed or designated.

As at 31 August 2020, Trust reserves are:

£
Restricted Generad Funds 1,476,000
Restricted Fixed Asset Funds 8,488,000
Unrestricted Funds 1,413,000
Restricted Pension Fund (20,816,000)
Total reserves (9,439,000)

The Trust Board carcfully considered the level of restricted general and unrestricted reserves that should be held. 1t was agreed
that & minimum of 18 days® expenditure should be held as reserve to provide sufficient working capital, cover delays between
receiving funding and spending, and deal with any unexpected isswtes, This equates to a target of approximately £2.25 million.

Work continues to review cach academy’s operating model 1o ensure that sufticicnt rescrves are being maintained to comply
with the policy.

Investment policy

The Trust's Atticles (5Cm) gives the Board the power “to deposit or invest any funds of the Company not immediately
reqquired for the fuitherance of its Objects (but to invest only afler obtaining such advice from a financial expert as the
Directors consider necessary and having regard to the suitability of investiments and the need for diversification).”

The Board has agreed investment objectives:

+ 10 achieve best financial retum available whilst ensuring that sccurity of deposits takes procedence over revenue
maximisation,

« Only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the Trust bank pecount
becoming overdrwn.

» By complying wilh this policy, all investment decisions shoukd he exercised with care and skill and conscquently be in the
hest interests of the Trust, commanding hroad public support.

During the year, interest mtes on surplus balances have reduced significantly, The Trust has sought to maximise interest by
using short-term deposit aecounts linked to the Trust's main current account. A new 12 month fixed interest deposit was afso
made with a difterent bank Jate in the year to help mitigate against the risk of interest rates reducing further.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for-the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Trust has conducted it comprehensive risk assessinent. The main business risks identified are:

» Failure to recruit and retain high quality Catholic Leaders,

» Failure to monitor and react accardingly to the risks associnted with competitor establishments.
» Fuifure (o meet requircements of GDPR legislation.

» Fuilure to secure required fundling for buildings and maintenance.

* Failure to ensure that the Trusts finuncial systenss and contrals are miintained.

* Covid- 19 operational and financial implications. ’

The Trast regularly considens risks for the whole Trust and for individual academies. Where risks ane likely to materialise, or
do materialise rapid action is taken,

There are no significant credit, cash flow or liguidity risks. The main financial instruments that are dealt with are bank
balances, cash, trade ereditors and very limited trade (and other) debtors. Debtors represent approximately 0.1% of the Trust’s
annual tumover.

Fundraising

The Trust has not used professional fundeaisers, and fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by the Trust.
Individual academics saise funds [rom local parishioners, {riends and family known as *planned giving®, Such donations ace
completely voluntary with no pressure put on anyone 10 donmte. Funds mised nee used for the benefits of students and their
education.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Strategic Report

Streamlined Encrgy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and cnergy use data for the period 01 Scptember 2019 to 31 August
2020

2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 9,554,756
Encrgy cansumption break down (k¥Wh)
Cins 6,816,546
Eleetricity 2,675,228
Transport fue) 30,690
Transport minibuses 32,292
Scope 1 emissions in metrie tonnes CO2e
Owned transport - mini-buses 8.23
Gns consumption ' 1253.00
Total scope | 1261.23
Scope 2 emissions i onetrie tonnes CO2e '
Purchased electricity 624,00
Scope 3 cmlssions in metric tonnes CO2¢
Business travel in employee owned vehicles . 7.40
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1892.63
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2¢ per pupil 0.22

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:
We have followed the 2019 HM Govemment Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting
Protacol - Corporate Standurd angd have used the 2020 UK Govemment's Conversion Pactors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurcmient ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2¢ per pupil, the recommended ratio for
the scetor,

Measures fuken to improve energy efficlency
We have installed smart meters across all sites and increased video conferencing technology tor staf) meetings, to reduce the
need for travel between sites.

Plans for future periads

Despite Covid-19 challenges, school improvement work will take place at any of our academies that are not meeting the agreed
educational standards, and the Trust is using 3 experienced School Improvement Headieachers part-time to bring about rapid
improvement where needed,

We expect Bishop Ellis Catholic Primary School to convert to acudemy status and join the Trust on 1 September 2021,

Page 16



St Thonias Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Trustees! Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

-Employment of disabled persons:
The Ti msl carties out its dutics under the Equality Act (20!0) by: i f .

t '
- promoting cquality of opportunity for disabled people: pupils, staff, parcnts, carers and other people who use the Trust or may

wish to
~-publishing a disability equality scheme which clearly identifics the employer n.sponsmnllly r\.gardmg disabled staf¥, as well as

disabled pupils, govemors; parents and visitors:

The Trust is fortunate to have a talented and (ls:(ln,ntcd workforce. Staff, parents. anid pupils.are valued by what thicy biing to the
Trust community. All our staff arc. committed to empowering our students- to " make pos:llvc contributions. by opcmng
opportunitics to leaming. -We will continually ensure that ali members of ‘our Trust commum(y understand that they can
confidentially raisc concerns in conngection with their personal needs or disability equality at any time.

Auditor A
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unawvare; and

*  the trustees have taken all S18ps that they ought 0 havé. tiken to make themselves atvire of ainy relevait addit informtion
il to cR(.lblush thiat the auditor is aware of thit ml‘nnmlmn. ’

Foreiter Bayd were appainted us wuditors for s 3'year period from 2018/19.

Trustees' Repon, mtorpomtmg hy Smucglc Report, npproved by order of the Members of the Board of Trustees oiv 14
December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

S \‘oon I
Chair of Trustces
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise, However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. .

The Twustees have delegated the day-to-day responsibility to N Lockyer, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
canform with the requircments ot both propricty and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and
responsibilitics assigned to it in the funding agreenent between St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Muli Academy Trust and the
Sceretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governunce
The information on govemance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement of
Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board has formally met 4 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the
Board was as follows:

Mecetings Out of n
Trustee attended possible
P P A Bateman ] 4
M I Cummins : 1 q -
FrlJ Daly 1 4
M T Delahunty 3 4
S J Noon 4 4
C B A Reynolds 4 4
T K Smith 4 4
B Underwood 4 4

The Board of Trustces' composition has not changed during the year. Despite Covid- 19 restrictions, Board Meetings and
scrutiny have continued to take place via video conference. The Board reviews all aspects of the Trust's operations, receiving
separts on educational perfonmanye, safeguarding, health and safely, premrises projects, and finance, A lacge focas sinee March
2020 has heen to challenge, support and serutinise the Trust’s approach o dealing with Covid-19.

The Exceutive Directors have improved the data and reporting to the Board during the year, ¢nabling the Bourd to better
scrtinise performance andd have g stronger base for decision making. Work is on-going to improve this yet further and in
particutar to link the educational performance to finanee performance.

Effective oversight of funds

The full Board hus met less than 6 times in the year. This was an intentional Board decision and taken to refleet the number of
other more in-depth challenge and scrutiny mectings that are held, For example, the Finance and Estates Conunittee have met
separately with the Finance Divector to review and challenge the monthly management necounts (and these meetings were in
addition to the Finunce and Estates Committee / Full Bourd meetings). The Board cousiders this to be an efiective way to holkd
the Exceutive to accaunt whilst balancing the time commitment on volunteer Board Directors to attend formal Board meetings.

An externad review of the Board has been commissioned and the findings will be considered during 2020/21.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust -

Governance Statement (continued)

The Finance and Lstates Comnitice is a sub-committee of the main Board. s purpose is to ensure that the Trust's finances are
managed effectively. Attendance at mectings during the year was as follows:

Mcctings Outofn
Trustee attended possible
PP A Bateman 1 4
S J Noon
T K Smith 4

The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board. Its purpose is to assist the Trustees in fulfilling their
oversight into the yuality, reliability and integrity of the financial statements. Attendance at meetings during the year was as
tollows:

Meetings Outof a
Trustce attended posstble
S J Noon 2 2
TK Smith 2 2
B Undenvood . 2 2

Review of value for money

As Accounting Otticer, the Chict Exceutive Ofticer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers gond value in the use
of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the cducational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
neademic year, wad reports to the Board where value tor moncy can be improved, including the use of benchmarking daia
where available.

The Accaunting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for maoney during the year by:
- renegotiating key contriets such as cuergy saving circa £150,000 cach year from Qctober 2020,
- reviewed and chaltenged stafling costs for all new and replacement pasts.

- reviewing where cash reserves are kept to maximise interest, which will lead to an estimated extrm £9,000 being reecived
during 2020/21 than would otherwvise have been received.

- embedding cashless systems in all academics leading to less work for stafT, less risk and more timely reporting ol income.

Covid-19 has adversely aftected value for money in some areas of Trust expenditure. For example, in line with Procurement
Policy Note 02/20 (PPN 02/20) the Trust has paid some supplicrs where no service has been provided. Payments were only
made where the supplicr declared that they were not receiving othier Government support, agreed to operate on an ‘open-book’
basis, and where we needed the supplier to remain in business and be ready to supply our academies again on re-opening. In
some cases, support was limited to 80% to reflect wider Government policy on Covid-19 support. The Trust paid all supplicrs
in full where there was a contractual obligation to do so.

The purposo of the system of Interunl control

The system of internal control is desipned to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to climinate all risk of failure to
achicve policles, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of electiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of
Trust policies, sims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efticiently, effectively and cconomically. The system of Interoal control has been in place in the
Trust for the year ended 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Governance Statement (continued)

Cupacity to handle risk

The Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and complisnce
controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2020 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board,

The risk and control framework
The Trust’s system of internal finoncial control is based on a framework of regular manngement information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of dutics and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it

includes:
+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed
and agreed by the Board;

* regular reviews by the Finance and Estates Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecusts
aud of major purchase plans, capital works and cxpenditure programmes;

+  seiting targets 1o measure financiad and other performance;

o clearly defined purchasing (asset purchise or capital investinent) guidelines;

o delegation of authority and segregation of dutics;

¢ identification and management ol risks.

The Board has considered the need lor a specific intemal audit function and has decided:
+ to appoint Leicestershire County Council as internal auditor

The intermal auditor's role Includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the financial
systems. In panticular the checks carried out in the current period included:

» testing of internal financial control within schools and the central Trust

* testing of purchase systems

+ testing of control account / bank reconciliations

« segregation of duties

s testing of compliance with Sixth Farm Bursary funding rules

+ testing the schaol census retums

On an *as completed® basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit and Risk Committee on the
operation of the systems of conteol and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees™ financial responsibilities and annually
prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining (he arcas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and
conclusions to hielp the commitiee consider actions and assess ycar on year progress,

Covid-19 meant the full programme of work was not completed by 31 August 2020 with 3 scheduled academy visits not taking
place during the lockdown period. 2 of the visits were undertaken in September 2020, The 3rd visit is being re-scheduled as
part of the 2020721 programme. From the work underiaken, there were no material control or other issues reporied by the
interaal auditors,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Covcrnan@e’j’Sgt‘ljtq‘mcnl-(colaiingl_cd)

Reviéw. of effectivencss:
:As Accounting Officer; N Lockyer has- mponxtblh(y for reviewing the uffccuvun.ss of. the system of mtcmal control. Durmg
T

the year in qu;stlon the review hds been informed by: -

K

thé Work of thié éxtemal auditor;

the wrk of 1 2icésfershire County, Couintil ifiterial alidit révigivs;

the work -of th¢ Exceditive Diréétors and Managers within' Trust who havie” n.sponSlblllly for the. dcvclopmcm ‘and
Am.\mun.mu, ofllw mlem.ll control lwmc.\mrk‘ . . . . . . . . .

4 FOView of Finaneinl Mimagement and Governanee using the:ESFA'S EMGS and SRMA franieworks.

The Accountiing Ofieer Ius been-advised of the unpmalmm of the result of their rwncw of the system of interunl control by
‘the. Audit and Risk Committee aud a plan to address weaknesses ensune continuons smprovumnt of thesystem is i plau

Appioved by order of thé meriibiers of the Bacd of Trustées an 14 December 2020ind signcd on'its behalf by:

S vnv\-ntwvv.n‘&qt-’:nnyigﬁﬂquol LD e b -, -
$ 1 Noon
Trustee '

N b

Acwuulmg officer
.Chief Exceutive Ofticer
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of the Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust Board and the Education
und Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of mitterial irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all
funding received by the Trust, uwnder the funding agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State for
Rducation, As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

I confirm that [ and the Trust the Bourd are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Trust, or
materia! non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding agreement and the Academics
Financial Handbook 2019,

I confinm that no instances of material irregularity, impropricty or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. I any
instanees are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notilied to the Board and ESFA.

N. Lﬁ'(zfuff.
|

N Lockyer
Accounting Ofticer

14 December 2020
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St Thomas Aquiniis Catholic Multi Acadeiy Trust
Statement of "I‘r,usti:c‘.g' .Rcspon.sllp.ili’t(és‘

The Tristees who are also the Directors of the ch*\nlnblc company for the purposes.of company law) are respansible for
preparing the Trustees' Report and ihe finangiol slalcmculs in accordance with the Aniual Acc?ums Dircction published by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, Umtcd Kingdom Accoummg Standards (United !ngdom Generally Ac\eplcd
Accounting Practice) and applicable Jaw and reguiaions.

Company ‘law requires. the Trusties to prepins fmﬂnu.ll statgments for eich financial yéir, Undcr company ldiv the Trustees
must not approve the finangial: statements unless they arg s.msﬁcd that they give 4 true iind fait view of the state of.affairs of
the charituble company und of its incoming regaurces und .ipphcalmn of resources, including its fncome id expenditure, for
that p«.rmd In pmparln;, these lnmm.ml %t.ncmcnl» the Trustees are rcqmn.d o

¢ seleet Suitable accotniing pohw.s aind apply them comnstcmly, '
« observe the methods and principles i thie Chiaritics SORP 2019 and the Academics, Accounts Dircetion 2019 to 2020;
¢ make judgments ¢ and accounting cstimates that arc reasonable and pnldcnl,

*  state whether applicable UK Agcoumlug Standards have been l'ollowcd subject to any material departures disclosed: and
cxplamcd n the finaucial statements; and

* prepare the fi nancial statements on the - -going concem “basis unless it is mnppropnlnlu to presume that the charitable
company.will continuc in business.

The Trustees are rcsponsnblc for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufticiént to show and explain the charitable
company’s transactions aud disclose with reasonable accuraey at any time the financial posmbn of the charitable company and
cenable them to ensure: that .the financial statements comply with the: Cmnp.mh.z. Act 2006, They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charilable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention-and dctccuon of
fraud and other Trregiilaritics,

The Trustees are n.sponstblc for t:nsunm2 that in ils conduct and opcmuon the charitable company applics financial and other
controls, which conform with the requirements both of propricty and of good financial manngement.- They arc also n.sponslblc
for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIR have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees ure ru\pmzslhlc for-the maintenunce -and mugnty of the curpnm!c and finiineia) information inchided on the
-churitahle company's. website, chnln(um in_the United Kingdom goveming the preparation. -md dissemination of finicial
stutements nay differ from fegistation in other jurisdictions:

-Approved by order of the members of the-Board on-14 December 2020 and signed on ils behalfby: . .

hY
e

SJNoonV/
-Chair of Trustees
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St Thomas Aqluinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of St Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multl Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St Thomas Aquinas Cathotic Multi Academy Trust (the 'Trust') for the year ended
31 August 2020, which comprisc the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure Account,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policics. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ircland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academics Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in aceordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academics Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issucd by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basls for opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiling (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRCs Ethical Standard, and we have fulfitled our other cthical
responsibilitics in aecardance with these requirements. We helicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, :

Conclusions relating to golng concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where; ‘

 the Trustees use of the going concern basis of secounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; ar

+ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identificd material uncertaintics that may cast significant
doubt about the Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accomting for a period of at least twelve
months fom the date when the inancial statemes are aatiorised for issue,

Other Information (covers the Reference and Administrative Detalls, the Trustees' Report and Strategic Report and the
Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thercon. Qur opinion on the financial statements docs not
caver the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assunmce conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statcments or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement In the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other intormation. 11 based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Page 24




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of S¢ Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust (continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companics Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and Trusteos' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are preparcd is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and nndgrslandm;, of the company and its enviromment obtained in the course of the audi, we
have not identificd material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report.

We have nothing (o report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:

¢+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us: or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

+ certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specificd by luw are not made; or

o we have nol reecivicd all the information and explinations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [sct out on page 23], the Trustees are responsible for the

prepanation ol the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and Jair view, and for such intemal control

as (he Trustees detenmine is necessary to enable the prepacition of finaveial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

(n preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going

concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Trustees either intend 10 liquidate the Frast or to cease operalions. or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibitities for the nudit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are 10 oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole ave (ree from imaterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or eqror, and toissue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will alwoys detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ot
in the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influcnce the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

v Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
petform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal
control.

*  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstmitces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the ettectiveness of' the Trust's internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and rclated
diselosures made by the Trustees.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basis of nccounting and, based on the audit
evidence ohtained, whether o material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uneertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conelusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of St Thomas Aguinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust (continued)

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient approprinte audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Trust to express an opinion on the financial stalemenms, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Trust audit. We remain solcly responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit und significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inlemal control that we identity during our audic.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part [6 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
nudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent pennitted by law, we do not sccept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Trust and its Trustecs, as a bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have tormed.

Alan Neshitt BA FOA{Senior Stututory Auditor)
tFor and on behalf of Forrester Boyd, Statutoty Auditor

Waynflete House
139 Eastgate
Louth
Lincolnshire

LNT19QQ

14 December 2920
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi
Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 August 2020 and further to the requirements of the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurince about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by St Thomas Aquinas
Catholic Multi Academy Trust during the period { September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authoritics which govem them,

This report is made solely to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy
Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
hy law, we do not aceept or assume responsibility to anyone other than St Thomas Aquinias Catholic Multi Academy Trust and
the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilitics of the Governing Body's Accounting Officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Ofticer is responsible, wider the requirements of the Board of Trustees's funding agreement with the Seeretary
of State for Education dated 29 Junc 2012 and the Academics Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring
that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Pardiament and the financial
transactions conform to the authoritics which govera them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 10 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests
that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income recclved during the year from 1 September 2019 10 31 August
2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or (hat the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagentent in accordance with the Acadeniies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by LSIA We
performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in
order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently daes not
crable us to obtain assurance that we would became aware of all sipnificant matiers that might be identificd in a reasonable
assurance cngagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, an a test basis, of cvidenee relevant to the regularity and propricty of the academy
trust's income und expenditure.
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
 cvaluating the systems and control environment;
» asscssing the risk of irccgularity, impropricty and non-compliance;
+ confinning the activitics of the Academy arc in keeping with the academy's framework and the charitable
objectives; and

 obtaining representations from the Accounting Officer and Key Management Personnel,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi
Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our atlention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year from | September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them.

A

cevrieresangocactcossd

Alan Nesbitt BA FC
For and on behalf of Forrester Boyd, Chartered Accountants

Waynflete House
139 Eastgate
Louth
Lincolnshire
LN119QQ

14 December 2020
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activitics for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Income and endowments from:
Voluntary income
Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy trust's educational
operations

Teaching schools
Other trading activities
Investments

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds

Charitahle activities:
Academy trust educational operations
‘Teaching schools

Total
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recogalsed galns and losses
Actuvarial gains/(fosses) on defined benelit
peusion schemes

Net movement in fundsi(deficit)
Reconcilintion of funds

Total fundsi(deficit) brought forward at |
September 2019

Total funds/deficit) carricd forward at 31
August 2020

Note

6

28

25

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Assct 2019720
Funds Funds Funds Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £ 00D
463 - 1070 1,633
- 43,317 - 43,317
53 52 . 105
1,230 - . 1,230
17 - - 17
1,763 43,369 1,170 46,302
546 2 - 548
60Y 406,108 1,260 47,974
. 84 . 84
1,155 46,191 1,260 48,606
608 (2.822) (90) (2,204)
- 15 (15) -
. (840) - (§46)
608 (3,653 (105) (3,150)
805 (15.687) 8,593 (6.289)
1413 (19,340) 8,488 (9,439)
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Financlal Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:
Voluntary income
Donations and capital grants 2

Transfer from local authorily on conversion /
trunsfer from existing acudemy trusts

Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy trust's educational

opcrations 3
Teaching schools '

Other trading activitics 4
Investments S
Total

Expenditure on: '
Ruising funds 6

Chavitabie activities:

Academy trust educational operations 7
Teaching schoals 28
Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other vecognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
pension schemes 25

Net movement in funds/(deficit)
Reconctliation of funds

‘Total funds/(deficit) brought forward at )
September 2018

Total funds/(deficit) carried forward at 31
August 2019

Restirlcted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Assct 2018/19
Funds Funds Funds Totnl
£000 £000 £ 000 £000
833 - 1,248 2,081
- (5.722) 4,809 )
. 40,646 . 40.646
19 60 - 79
1,379 - - 1,379
7 - - 7
2,238 34,984 6,057 43,279
937 6 - 943
795 43,125 0666 44,586
2 88 - 90
1.734 43,219 066 45.619
504 (8.,235) 5,391 (2,340)
(155) 153
- (4,299) - (4,299)
504 (12,689) 5,546 (6,639)
304 (2,998) 3,047 350
805 (15,687) 8,593 (6,289)
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multt Academy Trust

(Registeation number: 08090890)
Balance Sheet as it 31 August 2020

~ 2020 2019
! Note £ 000 £ 000
1
Fixcd assets
Tangible assets 12 -§:054 8,021
Curréiit assets
. Debtoey L 36 A
Cash at bank dnd in hand . 4,724 3,695
6,489 6,139
Creditors: Amounts’ falling due withii ong year’ 15 (a2 (2.681)
Net curreit asscts .3,368. 3,458
Total assels less curreit I'i,qbi’litics | ],422 11,479
Creditors: Amounté falfing Jué after more than one year 16 (45) _(63)
Net asseis Qxcill(ling pension liability 1,377 11,416
Penision scheme liab‘il_iiy 25 . '(2_0:8!6) ___(17.705)
Net liabitities iicluding fension liability _ _(9.439) (6,289).
l-‘l'in'ds of the Avadeiy:
Resteicted funds:
Restricted gcucr:ﬂ fimd 1.476 2,018
Restricted fixed asset fund 8,488 8,593
Restricted-pension fund - - : C - - =TTt T TT(20816) 0 T (17,705)
(10.852) (7,094)
Unrsstrictad fundy . . - S . Dot .
Unrestricted general fund 1,413 805
Toial funds (9.439) (6,289)

The financial siatenicits.on pages 29 to 64:wete approved by ihe Trustéés, and authoristd for issue oi 14 Deceimber 2020 aid
sigited on their behalf by: ’

-5 J Noiin {

Chuirof Trustees
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019

Note £ 000 £ 000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from obcmling uctivities 20 250 379)
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust - 2,401

Cash flows from financing activitics - 2] (17) (15)
Cash flows from investing activities 22 796 726
14 1,029 2,733

Increase in cash in the year
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1 Accounting policics
Geueral Information
The Trust is a company limited by gugraniee wul is an exemnpt charity incorported in England & Wales. The charitable

company's memorundum and articles of association gre the primary goveming documents of the Trust. The company
registastion number is 08090890).

“The address of its registered and principal office is:

Unit 5

Chamwood Edye Business Park
Syston Road

Cassinglon

Leicester

LE7 4UZ

Unit Kingdom

‘These financial statements cover the individual entity, St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust only.

A summary of the principal accounting policics adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. .

'

Basis of preparation

“The linancial statements of the academy trust, which is a public beactit entity under FRS 102, have been prepated under the

historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Irctand
(FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charitics preparing
their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irctand (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charitics Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements have been prepared in sterling, the functional cwerency, and have been rounded to the nearest
thousined,

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertaintics related to
cvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees
make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authovisation for issuc of the financial
statements and have concluded that the Trust has adequate resousces to continue in operational existence for the foresecable
future and there are no material uncertaintics about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements,

Specifically in connection with the current economic climate, the trustees have considered the impact of COVID-19 on the
trust and they are satisfied that the trust has sufficient financial headroom to continue to operate for at least the next twelve
months. For this reason the financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

Jncome

All incoming resousces are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can
be measured reliably.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continucd)

Grants

Grants arc included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received tor specific
purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the refevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in
advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and ils recognition
is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions arc met. Where entitlement
occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financiad Activitics in the year for which it is receivable and any
abatement in respeet of the period is deducted from ingome und recaguised as a liability.

Capitad grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants
are reflected in the balanee sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are spent on capital projects in line with the
terms and conditions of the gront. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferved over the life of
the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided o the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it
can be measured reliably.

Daonations

Donations are recognised on o receivuble basis (where there are no performance-refated conditions) where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other incame, including the hire of fagilitics, is recognised in the period it s receivable and to the extent the Trust has provided
the goods or services.

Donated poads, fucilities and seivices

Gowds donated for resale ace included at fair vittue, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expeeted costs ol sale. 1 it
is practical to assess the fair value at receipl, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the
value of the stock is charged against *lncome lrom other wrading activities” and the proceeds are recognised as *lucome from
other trading aclivities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the items duc to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the linancial statements uatil they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other irding
activities®.

Where the donated good is o fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical 1o measure this relinbly, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The pain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding
amount is included in the appropriate tixed asset category and depreclated over the useful economie life in accordance with the
academy trust*s accounting policics. :

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding
amount is included in the appropriate lixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the
Trust's accounting policics.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continucd)

Expenditure

All expenditure is recognised in the period in which a lmbllny is incurred and has been classificd under headings that aggregate
all cosls related to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allovated on a
basis consistent with the use of resources, with centraf staff costs allocated on (he basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset's usc. Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of stafY costs.

Al resources expended are exclusive of VAT except where irmecoverable,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all
Jfundraising aclivitics events and non-charitable trading such as trip costs, adult meals expenditure and school uniforms
expenditure,

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Trust’s educationnl aperations, including support costs and costs relating to the govemance of
the Trust apportioned to charitable activitics,

Intanpible fixed nssets

Intangible assets costing €5,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and the
cost or value of the assel can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. Amonisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at
rates calculated 10 write oft the cost of cach asset on a straight-line basis over its expected uscful life, as follows;

Assct class Amortisation method and rate
Computer software steaight line over 3 years

Tangible fixed asscts

Assels costing £5,000 or nore are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carricd at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impaisment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specitic grants, cither from the
govemment or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected usetul
cconamic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financind Activities and
caeried forward in the balance sheet. Deprecintion on such asscts is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activitics so as to reduce the fund over the useful cconomic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the
Academy Trust’s depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than frechold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of cach
asset over its expected useful lives, per the table below.,

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought into
use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carvied ont if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carvying vatue of
any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorttalls between the carrying value of tixed assets and their recoverable amounts are
recognised as impainnents. Impainnent losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities,

Long-term leasehold land and buildings:

The long-term leaschold fand and buildings are held on a 125 year lease with Leicestershire County Council. Thl,)’ were
rcmynscd as an asset on canversion and are being depreciated aceordingly.

Premises occupied under license:
The rust also oceupy premises under a Jicense and as a result this is not included on the batunce sheet. Any improvements to

these premises are included within leaschold improvements and are depreciated accardingly.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policles (continued)

Assct class Depreciation method and rate
Long leaschold land and buildings straight linc over 125 yeans
Leasehold Improvements ‘ straight line between 14 and 20 years
Furniture and equipment straight line over 3 years

Computer ¢quipment straight ling over 3 years

Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible o a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Liabilities

Liabilitics are recognised when there s an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a
wansfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the setttement can be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as
advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide, .

Provistons

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past ovent which it is probable
will result in the transfer of cconomic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required 1o setile the obligation. Where the ¢ffect of the time value
of monecy is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recagnised within interest payable and similar
charges.

L.casedt assets
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantintly all of the benefits ang risks of ownership remain with the lessor are
charged to the Statement of Financial Activitics on a straight liite basis over the lease tem,

Taxation
The Trust is considered to pass the tests set owt in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therejore it meeis the
definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposcs.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respeet of income or capital gains received within categorics

covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
10 the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively o charitable purposvs.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Penslon benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes. The TPS is an unfonded scheme and contributions
are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the
pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionnble p.nytoll The contributions are determined by
the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfuided
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate,

The L.GPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets arc held separately from those of the Trust in separate trusiee
administered funds, Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilitics are measured on an actuarinl basis using
the projected unit credit methed and discounted at a rate equivafent to the current rate of return on « high quality corporate
bond of equivalent tenm and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least trienaially and are updated
at cach balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
intractuctions, benefit changes, scttlements and curtailments, They are included as part of stafY costs as incurred, Net interest on
the net defined benefin liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the seheme assets, caleulated by multiplying the fair value of the
scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuariol gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recoguised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent shose resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the
Trust at the diseretion of the trustees

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the
asset acquired or ereated is held for a specifie purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include
paants from the Department tfor Education Group.

Crltlcal acconnting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical cXperience .md other tactors, including
expectations of future eveats that are believed 1o be reasonable under the eircumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assuumptions

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by
definition, scldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Schene defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are
deteemined on an actuarial basis using a varicty of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the et cost (income) for
peasions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note x, will impact the carrying
amount of the pension liability. Furthermore o roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valulng the pensions liability at 31/08/2020. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amount of the pension liability,
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policics (continued)

Agency accounting

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA and subsequent
disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financinl Activities as the trust does not have control aver the
charitable application of the funds, The Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds received and paid and any balauces held are disclosed in note

27,

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted

Unrestricted fixed nssct Total Total

funds funds 2020 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000

Traunsfer on conversion - - - 913)

Other. voluntary income

Educational trips and visits ‘ 365 - 365 725
Capital grants - 1,158 1,158 1,248
Other donations 98 - 98 108
Donated fixed assets - 12 12 -
463 1,170 1,633 2,081

Total voluntary income 463 1,170 1,633 1168

Page 38



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DIE/EFA revenue grants

General Amnual Grant (GAG)
Teacher’s Pay grant

Universal Infant Free School Meals
Teacher's Pension grant

Pupil Premium

Other DIE 7 ESFA grants

Post 16 Bursary

Other government
grants

Early Ycars

Other Local Authority Income
Other Government grants
High Needs / SEN

Non-government
grants and other income

QOther income

Exceptionnl government funding
Coronavirus Exceptional Support
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

Total grants
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Restricted Total Total
funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £000 £ 000

36,718 36,718 35,361
493 493 309
550 550 714

1,403 1,403 -
1,449 1,449 1,446
632 632 898
a0 40 22

41,285 41,285 38,750
349 349 259
110 110 465

52 S2 153
1,076 ' 1,076 916
1,587 1,587 1,793
196 196 103
105 s
144 {dd .
43,317 43,317 40,646




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £000
Hire of facilitics 84 84 80
Catering income 597 597 778
School shop sales 22 22 . 29
Other sales 527 527 492
1,230 1,230 1,379
§ Investment income ‘
Unrestricted Total Total
funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £000 £000
Short term deposits 17 17 7
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

6 Resources expended

Expenditurc on rising funds -
direcl costs

Academy's educntional
opcrations

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Teaching schools expenditure
Dircct costs
Allocated support costs

Net incoming/ontgolng resources for the year include:

Operating leases - other feases

Fees payable to auditor - audit
Amortisation of intungible fixed ussets
Internil sudit scrvices

Onher assurance work

Depreciation of angible fixed assels

Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other costs 2020 2019
£000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
- - 548 548 943
30,565 - 1,616 - 32,181 29,820
3,695 3,305 3,793 15,793 14,766
39,260 3,305 5.409 47,974 44,5860
41 _ - 19 60 67
21 | 2 24 23
.62 ] 21 84 ()
39,322 3,306 5978 48,600 45,619
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
85 87
28 31
I |
s 5
v b
350 364
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Teaching und educational support staft’ costs
Technology costs

Educational supplics

Examination fees

Staff development

Bducational consullancy

Other direct costs

Support costs - educational operations
Support staff costs

.GPS Service cost adjustment
Depreciation and amortisation
‘Technology costs

Muaintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Ren, rates and utilities

Insumince

Recruitment and support

Security and teanspon

Cutering

Bank interest and charges

Interest on defined benefit pension scheme
Professional fees

Other support costs

Governance costs

Total direet and support costs

Total Total
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
30,565 28,201
81 93
560 426
402 398
185 230
349 408
39 64
32,181 29,820
6,767 6,476
1,928 1,591
387 362
709 632
1,361 976
37 261
961 852
309 306
38 57
13 116
1.395 1393
26 24
337 333
412 494
724 845
39 48
15,793 14,766
41,974 44,586
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (confinued)

7 Charitable activitics (continued)

Educational Total Total
aperations 2020 2019
£000 £ 000 £000
Analysis af support costs
Support statY costs 8,695 : 8,695 8,067
Depreciation and amortisation 357 357 362
Technology costs ‘ 709 709 632
Premises costs 2,948 2,948 2,398
Other support costs 3,048 3,048 3,262
Ciovemance costs 39 39 48
Total suppart costs 15,793 15,793 14,766
8 Staff
Staff costs :
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries _ 28,008 26908
Social security costs 2,660 2,513
Pension ¢osts 3,309 6,386
38974 35,807
Supply teacher costs 321 494
Staft restructuring costs ' 217 KK
39,322 36,334
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments - 8
Severance payments 27 25
27 33

Staff numbers

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

2020 2019
No No
Charltable Activities
Teachers . 462 405
Administration and support 785 718
Management 83 79
1,332 1,262

Page 43



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)

Higher paid seaff

The nunber of employees whose cmoluments exceeded £60,000 was:

2020 2019

. No No
£60,001 - £70,000 19 15
£70,001 - £30,000 : 2 4
£80,001 - £90,000 4 3
£90,001 - £100,000 2 (
£130,001 - £140,000 - |
£140,001 - £150,000 1 ~

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustecs and the Exccntive Management Team as listed on page 1.
The total amount of employee benelits (including employer pension contributions) reccived by key management personnet for
their services to the Trust was £625,967 (2019; £559,108).
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9 Central services
The Academy Trust has provided the following centrul services to its Academies during the year;

- Finanee and Accounling

- Payroll

« Internal and Extemal Audit
- School Improvement

- Business Services

- Health and Safety

- Legal

- HR

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

- Flat percentage of income (5% of GAG)

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

St Clare's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 38,000 39,000
De Lisle College - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 298,000 290.000
St Francis Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 43,000 45,000
Haly Cross Primary Schaol - A Catholic Volumtary Academy - Whitwick 33,000 32,000
St Joseph's Primary Schoo! - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Leicester 38,000 39,000
St Joseph's Primarvy Schoot - A Catholie Voluntary Academy - Leicester 52,000 §3,000
Christ The King Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 1000 99,000
English Martyrs' Secondary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 286,000 269,000
HoSy Cross Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Leicester 52,000 45,000
St Mary's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Acadetmy 42,000 42,000
St Pattick's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 47,000 42,000
St Peter's Primary School - A Catholic Yoluntary Academy - Earl Shilton A4|,000 41,000
St Peter's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Hinckley 39,000 39,000
St Paul's Secondary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 271,000 260,000
St Charles Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 27,000 27,000
St Martin's Sccondary Schoof - A Cutholic Voluntary Academy 166,000 153,000
Saercd Heart Catholic Voluntary Academy - Loughborough 41,000 40,000
Sacred Heart Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Leicester 87,000 £8,000
St Thomas More Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 48,000 49,000
St John Fisher Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 71,000 41,000
St Winefride's Catholic Voluntary Acadc‘my 33,000 34,000
1,864,000 1,767,000
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10 Related party transactions - trustees’ remuncration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been puid remuncrtion or has reccived other benefits from employment with the Trust, The
Headteacher and other stafY Trustees only receive remunceration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of
Headiescher aad staft members under their contraets of employment, and nol in respeet of their role as Trustecs. The value of
Trustees’ remuncration and other benefits was as follows:

L Freemian (Headteucher (resigned 30th September 2018)):

Remuneration: £Nif (2019 - £0 - £5,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £Nil (2019 - £0 - £5,000)

S Minford (llcadtcacher (resigned 30th September 2018)):

Remuneration: £Nil (2019 - £0 - £5,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £Nil (2019 - £0 - ES ,000)

C R Murphy (1leadteacher (resigned 30th September 2018)):
Remuneration: £Nil (2019 - £5,000 - £10,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £Nil (2019 - £0 - £5,000)
During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenscs totalling £197 (2019 - £298) were reimbursed or paid
directly to 2 Trustees (2019 - 1), .
Other related party transactions invelving the trustees are set out in note 26.
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| 11 Trustees' and officers’ Insurance ; : i
¥

 In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurnce to prot_ccl Trustees and ofticers from claims
arising from negligent acts, crrors or omissions oceurring whilst on Trust business. The Trust have opted into the Depariment
for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) for Trusts from 15t September 2019. This scheme provides unlimited ¢over.
It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity etement from the overall cost of the RPA scheme,

The cost of this insurance is included in the tolal insurance cost.

12 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold
landand  Assets under  urnlture and Computer Leasehold
buildings construction equipment equipment  Improvements Total
£000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost .
AL 1 Scptember '
2019 3,870 378 301 450 4,510 9,509 i
. Additions - 135 33 - 223 391
A3 August 2020 3870 __SI13 A 33 450 4,733 9.900
Depreciation g
At 1 September
2019 111 - 179 426 772 1,488
Charge for the year 29 - 65 15 249 358
AL 31 August 2020 140 - 244 441 1,021 1.846
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 3,730 513 90 9 3,712 8.054
At 31 August 2019 3,159 378 122 24 3,738 8,021

The individual academics within the Trust also occupy land and property owned by the Diocesan Trustees. Where therc is no
formal lease in place, these assets are not included in the above figurcs, as they are held based on an informal "licence to
operate” in the propertics owned by the Diccese. Enhanced detail is contained in the Related Party disclosure (number 25),
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13 Dcbtors
2020 2019
v £000 £ 000
Trade debtors 261 257
Prepayments 505 306
Accrued grant and other income 703 1,556
VAT recovensble ‘ 283 302
Other debtors 13 23
1,765 2,444
14 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Cush at bank and in hand _ 4,724 3,695
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,724 3,695
15 Creditors: amousnts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
Trade creditors 1,118 1.034
Other taxation and social security 593 597
Other creditors 6 27
Pension scheme creditor 701 307
Loans 17 17
Accruals 506 492
Delerved income 180 207
3,121 2,081
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Deferred income
Deferred income at | September 2019 207 40
Resources defeered in the period 180 207
Amounts released from previous periods (207) (40)
Deferred income at 31 August 2020 180 207

Amounts totalling £94,000 (2019: £111,000) were received for educational trips and visits in advance during the year, £86,000
(2019: £86,000) of deferred income relates to grants from the EFSA/DIF/L.ocal authority. In 2019, the remaining £10.000 of
deferred income relates te Planned Giving income (2020: £nil)

Page 48



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

Included in creditors due within one year are Salix loans of £13,000 which are provided on the following terms: An interest
free loan was granted at the folowing school's within the trust:

- De Liste College - interest free loan for a perickd of 8 years from March 2016 - fixed repayments ure made every 6 months in
arrears including the principal and interest until the loan is repaid.

- Christ The King Primary School « interest free loan for a period of 6 years from February 2019 - fixed repayments are made
cvery 6 months in arrcars including the principal aud interest untif the foan is repaid.

- St Patriek’s Primary School - interest free loan for a period of 7 years from April 2019 - fixed repayments are made every 6
months in arrcars including the principal and intecest until the loan is repaid.

Included in creditors due within one year are Condition Improvement Fund loans of £5,000 which are provided on the
following terms: Included within the Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) Loan is:

- De Lisle College - The CIF loan is a § year loan with an interest rate of 1.97% per annum repayable by monthly instalments
of £238. : .

- Saint John Fisher - This is an interest free Safix loan within CIF budget repayable by bi-annual instalments of £500.

- Saint Martin's - This is an intcrest free Sakix loan within the CIF budget repayable by bi-annual instalments of £424.

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Condition Improvement Fand (CIF) 2 6
Salix Loan 43 57
45 63

Included in creditors due afler one year are Salix loans of £43,000 which are provided on the following terms: An interest free
loan was granted at the following school's within the trust:

- De Lisle College - interest free loan for a period of 8 years from March 2016 - fixed repayments are made every ¢ months in
arrears including the principal and interest until the loan is repaid.

- Christ The King Primary School - interest free loan for a period of 6 years from February 2019 - fixed repayments are made
every 6 months in arrcars including the pringipal and interest until the loan is repaid.

- St Patrick’s Primary Schoal - interest free loan for a period of 7 years from April 2019 - fixed repayments are made every 6
months in arrears including the principal and interest until the Toan is repaid.

included in creditors due afier one year are Condition Improvement Fund loans of £2,000 which are provided on the following
terms: Included within the Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) Loan is:

« Dc Liste Cotlege - The CIF loan is a 5 year loan with an interest rate of 1.97% per annum repayable by monthly instalments
of £238, :

- Saint John Fisher - This is an interest free Salix loan within CIF budget repayable by bi-annual instalments of £500.

- Saint Martin's - This is an interest Inee Salix foan within the CIF budget repayable by bi-aunual instalments of £424,
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17 Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other Restricted

Pupil Premiwin

Universal Free School Meals
Local Authority

Restricted fixed asset funds
DFE/CFA capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
Inherited assets

Capital income from the Diecese

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unresteicted gencral funds

Total funds

Balance at |

September Incoming Resources Guins, losses  Balance at 31
2019 TeSOUrees expended  and transfers Aupust 2020
£ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,356 36,719 (37,174) N 916
n 2,569 (2,569) - -
- 547 (547) - -
246 1,449 (1,436) - 239
416 550 (6G45) . 321
- 1,535 ~ (1,535) . ~
2,018 43,369 (43,920) 15 1,476
1,440 208 (1,031) - 614
163 - (12) (15) 136
6,192 12 (180) - 6,024
798 933 (37) - 1,744
8,593 1,170 {1,260) (15) 8,488
(17,705) - (2,265) (846) (20,816)
(7,094) 44,539 (47.451) (846) (10.852)
805 1,763 (1,155) 1,413
(6,289) 46,302 (48,606) {846) (9.439)
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17 Fuands (continued)

Comparative information in respeet of the preceding period is as foltows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DFE/ESFA grants

Other Restricted

Pupil Premiwm

Universal Free School Meals
Local Authority

Grant.income from the Diocese
Transfer on conversion

Transter from existing Academy

Restricted fixed asset funds
DE/EFA capital grants

Capital expenditare from GAG
Inherifed ussets

Capital income from the Diocese

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted Tunds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at |

September Incoming Resources Guins, lusses  Balance at 31
2018 resourees expended  and transfers August 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

246 35,361 (34,090) (155) 1,356

68 1,288 (1,356) - -

1) 258 (2069) . .

5S 1,446 (1,255) - 246

55 714 (353) - 416

- 1,639 (1.639) . -

50 - (50) - -

. 1,546 (1,546) - .

- 731 (731) - -

485 42,983 (41,295) (155) 2018

1,243 580 (383) - 1,440

60 - (52) - 155 163

1,700 4,697 (205) - 6,192

44 780 {26) - 798

3,047 6,057 {666) 155 8,593
{3,483) (7,999) (1,924) (4,299) (17,705)
49 41,041 (43.885) (4,299) (7,094)

301 2,238 (1,734) - 803
350 43,279 (45.619) (4.299) (6,289)
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17 Funds (continued)

‘The specific purposes for which the Tonds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust,

Other DE / ESFA grants is made up of income for insurance costs, rates relief, teacher’s pay, teacher's pensions and Free
School Mcal supplementary grant (FSM).

Pupil Premivm may be spent for the cducational benefit of pupils registored at that Academy, or for the benefit of pupils
registered af other Acadenties; and on community facilitics i.c. services whose provision furthers any charitable purpose for the
benefit of pupils at the Academy or their families, or pcople who live or work in the locality in which the Academy is situated.
The grant does not have to be completely spent by Academies in the period.

Universal Free Schoo! meals income must be used to provide all pupils in reception, year | and year 2 with a free school lunch.

Condition Improvement Funding is allocated to the Trust from the DfE. It's primary purpose is to address significant building
condition need and keeping Academy buildings safe and in good working order. This funding is pooled and held by the
Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocese and drawn down for agreed projects by the Trust,

Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) either allocated direct by the DIE or transferred on conversion from the Local Authority
must be spent on capital purposes.

Unrestricted fund represent other incoming resources to the Trust applicd for the general purposes of the Trust ai the discretion
of the Trustees.

The inherited assels consist of the fixed asscts transferred (o the Trust on conversion from the Local Authority, The
cxpenditure is the depreciation of these ussets during the year.

A transter of £11,000 was made during the year to reflect capital additions honght nsing restricted generad funds, Also ineluded
in transters is an amount totalling £26,000 which represent funds received in the year ended 315t August 2020 from the
Dincese tor capital expenditure made in 2019, The Trust had previousty vsed vestricted gencad funds o Tund this expeaditure
and was not previously ¢ertain o receive the additional funding,

The ncademy trust is not subjeet 1o GAG carried fonward limits.
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund batances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019

£ 000 £000
St Clare's Primary School - A Catholie Voluntary Academy - {
De Lislo College - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 925 471
St Francis Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 135 87
Holy Cross Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Acidemy - Whitwick 116 113
St Joseph's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Leicester 177 181
St Josepl's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Market Harborough 203 172
Christ The King Primary School -« A Catholic Voluntary Academy (166) (on
Leicestershire Catholic Teaching School Alliance 10 - (1)
English Martyrs’ Secondary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 266 410
Holy Cross Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Leicester 137 87
St Mary's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 4 50
St Patrick's Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 23 8
St Peter’s Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Ear Shilton 186 198
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17 Funds (continued)

2020 2019

£000 £000
St Peter’s Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy - Hinckley 100 116
St Paul's Secondary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy : 396 433
St Charles Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 20 33
St Martin's Sceondary School - A Cathalic Voluntary Academy 391) 221
Sacred Heart Catholic Voluntary Academy - Loughborough 42 70
Sacred Heart Primary School - A Catholic Voluniary Academy - Leicester 122 153
St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust 293 325
St Thomas More Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy ‘ 139 149
St John Fisher Primary School - A Catholic Voluntary Academy 80 101
St Winefride's Catholic Yoluntary Academy 72 88
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2,889 2,823
Restricted fixed asset resenve 8,488 8,593
Pension reserve _ (20,816) (12,708)
Total (9.439) (6,289)

St Murtin's Secondury School - A Catholic Volunuiry Academy is carrying a net deficit of £391000 on these funds because:

St Martin's deficit was inherited by the Trust on conversion. The schaol has been growing with no additional fonding from the
Local Authority or Government leading to an increased deticit. The lagged fumding for the extra pupils is being reecived in
2020721 and an in-yenr surplus bucdget has been set to start recovery of the cumulative deficit.

The trust is taking the following action to retumn the academy to surplus:

Spending decisions and staffing are closely monitored to enable the deficit to be repaid vver the coming, years.

Christ The King Primary School - A Catholie Voluntary Academy is carvying & net deficit of £166000 on these funds because:

Christ the King's deficit was inherited by the Trust on conversion. The school has been growing with limited additional
funding from the Local Authority.

The trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

Tight controls on spending and staftfing decisions have meant an in-year surplus budget being set for 2020/21 which will start
to repay the cumulative deficit, 2020721 is the last ycar of growth, with full funding for all pupils being received from 2021722,
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17 Funds (continucd)
Analysls of academics by cost

Expenditure incurred by eich ucademy during the year was as follows:

‘Teaching and

Educational
Support Staff
Costs
£000
St Clace's Primary School - A
Catholic Voluntary Academy 608
De Lisle College - A
Catholi¢ Voluntary Academy 4,463

St Francis Primary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy 736
Holy Cross Pritary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy - Whitwick 570
St Joseph's Primary School -

A Cathulic Voluntary

Acadenty - Leicester 908
St Joseph's Primary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy - Market

Harborough 616
Christ The King Primary

School - A Catholic

Voluntary Academy . R
Leicestershire Catholie
Teaching School Alliance 41

£nglish Martyrs' Sccondary

Schoeol - A Cathotic

Voluntary Academy 4,405
Holy Cross Primary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy - Leicester 1,001
St Mary's Primary School - A
Catholic Voluntary Academy 718

St Patrick’s Primary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy 842
St Peter's Primary Schaol - A

Cutholic Voluntury Academy

- Earl Shilton 730
St Peter’s Primary School - A

Catholic Voluntary Academy

- Hinckley. 656
St Paul's Secondary School -

A Catholic Voluntary

Academy 4369

Other
Support Staff
Costs
£000

132

816

105

84

126

87

290

20

1.050

150

123

(2R

129

11

79
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Other Costs
Educational  .(excluding
Supplies Depreclation)
£ 000 £000

40 128

483 424

47 120

50 78

42 165

s3 118

juu 38

21

49 615

105 238

70 144

46 112

82 108

52 115

419 499

Taotal
2020
£000

908

6,186

1,008

782

1.241

874

2,678

82

6,021

1,491

1,055

L1kl

1019

- 934

6,066

Total
2019
£000

878

6,255

1,070

779

1,291

856

2,400

90

6,223

1,236

996

9RI

952

940

5,984
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17 Funds (continucd)

St Churles Primary School -
A Catholic Voluntary
Academy

St Martin's Secondary School
- A Catholic Voluntary
Acadenmy

Sacred Heart Catholic
Voluntary Academy -
Loughborough

Sacred Heart Primary School
- A Catholic Volumtary
Acadeimy - Leicester

St Thomas More Primary
Schoot - A Catholic
Voluntary Academy

St John Fisher Primary
School - A Catholic
Voluatary Academy

St Winefride's Catholic
Voluntary Academy
Central services

Acitdemy Trust

Teaching and
Educational Other Other Costs

Support Staff  Support Staff  Educational  (excluding Total Totul
Costs Costs Supplics Depreciation) 2020 2019
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

451 69 53 94 667 025

2,938 s 341 492 4,294 3,669

676 108 58 191 1,033 946

1,581 243 108 186 2,118 2,161

1,042 157 67 104 1.367 1,373

647 133 60 133 973 927

594 99 27 151 871 813

211 3,323 22 1,298 4,854 1,889

10,765 8.768 2,786 5,911 48230 43,334
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17 Funds (continued)

18 Analysis of net asscts hetween funds

Fund balances at 31 Aupust 2020 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assels

Current liabilities
Creditors over | year
Pension scheme liability

Total nct assets

Camparative information in respeet of the preceding period is as follows:

Tangible fixed asscts
Current assets
Current liabilities

_ Creditors over ¥ year
Pension scheme liabilily

Total net assets

19 Financlal commitments

Operating leases

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed nsset
funds  general funds " funds Total funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 8,054 8,054
1,413 4,642 434 6,489
- (3,121) - (3,121)
. (45) . (45)
- (20,816) - (20,816)
1,413 (19,340) 8,488 (9,439)
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed nsset
funds  general funds funds Total funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 8,021 8,021
805 4,762 572 6,139
. (2,681) - (2.081)
(63) - (63)
(17,705) (17,705)
805 (15,687) 8,593 (6,289)

At 31 August 2020 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due afler five years
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£ 000 £000
86 80
224 129
60 80
370 289
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20 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Net expenditure

Amortisation

Depreciation

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust
Donated capital

Fixed Assets transferred on conversion

LGPS dcficit transferred on conversion

Donated capital and capilal grants

Interest receivable

LGPS interest on defined benefit pension scheme
L.GPS service cost adjustment
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in ereditors

Net cash inflow/(outNow) from operating aclivities
21 Cash ftows from flnancing activitics
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in financing activitics

22 Capltal expenditure and financial investment

Interest from investments

- Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capita) funding received from sponsors and others
Assets under construction

Net cash provided by investing activitics

23 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
L.oans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

Total

2020 2019
£000 £000
(2.304) (2,340)
- I
358 361
: (2,401)
(12) (112)
. (4,697)
- 7,999
(1,158) (1,248)
a7 )
337 333
1,928 1,591
679 (2,105)
439 (2.451)
" 250 (5,076)
2019120 2018/19
£000 £000
(7) (15)
(7 (13)
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
17 7
(256) (263)
1,170 1,360
(135) (378)
796 726

At ] September

At 31 August

2019 ° Cash flows 2020
£000 £000 £000
3,695 1,029 4,724
(17) - un
(63) i8 (45)
(80) 18 (62)
3,615 1,047 4,662

Page §7



St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

24 Mcmbers' liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it
being wound up while they are a Member, or within ane year after they cease to be a Member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

25 Pension and similar obligations .

The Trust's cmployees belong 1o two prineipal pension schemes: the Teachers® Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for
academic and refated staffy and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching stafY, which is managed by
Leicestershire County Council.. Both are multi-cmployer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actunrial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £(701,000) (2019 - £(307,000)) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are included within
creditors.

Teachers’ Penslon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit schame, governed by the Teachers® Pension
Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for wachers in academies All teachers have the option to opt-out of the
‘TPS following enrolment,

The TIPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and cmployer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these
contributions are creditred 1o the Exchequer, Retirement and other pension beaehits are paid by public funds provided by
Parliament,

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Govenunent Actuary, using normal actaarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with
the Public Scrvice Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Dircctions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years.
The aim of the review is (o specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions
about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The kest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
ont as at 31 March 2016, The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on S March 2019.

The key clements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

« employer contribution rates st at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

+ total scheme liabilitics (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective
date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investiments held at
the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

+ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used te determine the notional investment retum, The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above
the rate of CPL. Assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of camings. The rate of real
carnings. The rate of real carnings growth is assumcd to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings
growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from | April 2023,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted 10 £4,382,000 (2019: £2,896,000).
A copy of the valuation report amd supporting documentation is on the Teachers® Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an untunded multi-cimployer pension scheme. The Trust has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Trust has sct out above the information
avaifable on the scheme.
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25 Penslon and s}imllar obligations (coitinued) i
. i

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustce-administered funds, The total
contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £2,490,000 (2019 - £2,172,000), of which ¢mployer's contributions
totalled £1,999,000 (2019 - £1,749,000) and employces' contributions totalled £491,000 (2019 - £423,000). The agreed

_ contribution rates for future years ure 24,3% - 24.4% per cent for employers and 5,5% - 12.5% per cent for employees,

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Seerctary of:State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of Academy
closure, outstanding Local Govermnent Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Departmient for Edueation, The

guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rale of increase in salarics
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumptions (CPI)

2020
%
2,70

1.70
2,20

2019
%
3.30
1.80
2,30

The current mortality assumptions include suflicient allowance for future improvements in the mortality rates, The assumed

life expectations on retirement age 65 arc:

Retiring today

Males retiring today
Females retiring today
Retiring In 20 years

Males retiring in 20 years
Females retiting in 20 years

Scnsitivity analysls

Discount rate -0.5%
Salary inercase rite +0.5%
CPl rate +0.5%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Other bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual remm.on scheme assets was (£1,096,000) (2019 - £931,000).
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2020 2019
21.50 21.20
23.80 23.40
22.20 22.20
25.20 24.70

2020 2019

000 000
£5,i24 £4,619
£509 £688
£4,525 £3,830

2020 2019

£000 £ 000

13,021 12,014
6,400 6,421
1,766 1,657

883 621

22,070 20,713




St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

25 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2019720 2018/19

, £ 000 £000

Current service cost (3.927) (2,309)

Past service cost - (531)
Interest income ' ' 192 507

Interest cost (729) (840)

Total amount recognized in the SOFA (4,264) (3.673)
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25 Pcension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of defined henefit obligations were as follows:

At start of period

Conversion of academy trusts

Transferred in on existing academics joining the trust
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employce contributions

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Past service cosl

At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of academy’s share of scheme nssets:

At start of period

Conversion of academy trusis

Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust
Interest income

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benelits paid

AL August

Net pension scheme liabitity shown within the financial statements at 31 August:

26 Reclated party transactions

2019720

2018/19
£ 000 £ 000
33,418 9,006
. 10,629
. 9,068
3,927 2,809
729 840
491 423
(250) 5,230
(429) (118)
- 531
42,886 38,418
2019/20 2018/19
£000 £ 000
20,713 5,523
. 6,015
- 5,683
392 507
(1.096) 931
1,999 1,749
491 423
(429) (118)
22,070 20,713
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
20,816 17,705

Owing to the nature of the Trust’s opecations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from tocal public and
private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will tuke place with organisations in which « member of the Board
of Trustees may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at anm’s length where the value
of the transactions is below the ESFA's de minimis limil, Any transactions above this limit will be reviewed to ensure that they
arc conducted on a non-profit basis. ln cither case the transactions will be conducted in accordance with the Trust's financial

regulations and normal procurement procedures.
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St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

26 Related party transactions (continued)

Expenditure related party transactions
During the year the Trust made the following related party transactions:

Nottingham Roman Catholle Diocesan Education Service (NRCDES)

(The NRCDES supports schools to ensure that they are successtul and act in accordance within the Trust Deed of the Diocese.
This involves advice and direction being given on a broad range of educational matters such as RE and curriculum issues,
Catholic Life of a school, staffing and recruitment, govemance, admissions and capital developments, Rishop Patrick
McKinney is a Member of the Trust and a Trustee/Director of the NRCDES.)

During the year, the Trust paid £148,960 (2019 : £176,054) to NRCDES for the advice and direction as outlined above,

The 2019 Academics Financial Handbook (s 5.56) confirms that contributions made by an academy trust to its diocese for
serviees it reecives associated with securing the academy trust's religious character and ethos, which only the diocese ¢in
provide, are regarded as meeting the *at cost® requirement.

In entering into the transaction the Trust has complicd with the requirements of the Academics Financinl Handbook 2019,

The clement above £2,500 has been provided ‘at no more than ¢ost' and Nottingham Roman Citholie Diocesan Education
Service (NRCDES) has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

At the balanee sheet date the amount due from/(to) Nottingham Romoan Catholie Diecesan Lducation Serviee (NRCDES) was
£204,291 (2019 - £Nil).

Nottingliam Roman Cathotie Dlocesan ‘Trustees

{The Trust has a material interest in the Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocese)

During the year, the Trust paid £2,397 (2019 : £ail) to the Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees.

In entering into the transaction the Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,
At the balance sheet date the amount due (o Nottingham Roman Catholie Diocesan Trustees was £Nil (2019 - £Nil).

Nottingham Diocesan Catholle Youth Service (NDCYS)

{NDCY'S provides o catholic retreat centre of student trips that is located within the Diocese of Nottingham. There is no
coninact in place, schools determine whether to visit the reireat eentre cach year)

During the year, the Trust paid £30,144 (2019 : £66,649) to NDCYS for trips as outlined above, |

I entering into the rransaction the Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financind Handbook 2019,

The clement above £2,500 has been provided ‘at no more than cost' and Nottingham Diccesan Catholic Youth Service
(NDCYS) has pravided a statement of assurance confirming this.

At the balance sheet date the amount due fromf(to) Nottingham Diocesan Catholic Youth Service (NDCYS) was £6,405 (2019
- £Nil).-

Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi Academy Trust

(Bishop P McKinney is a Member of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Academy Trust and Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic
Multi Academy Trust)

During the year, the Trust paid £547,278 (2019: £407,412) to Qur Lady of Lourdes CMAT for shared services including
payroll, HR anil computer software.

In entering into the transaction the Trust has complicd with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

The clement above £2,500 has been provided 'at no more than ¢cost' and Qur Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi Academy Trust
has provided a statement of assurinee confinming this.

At the balance sheet date the amount due to Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi Academy Trust was ENil (2019 - £Nil).

Kunights Ple

(M Cummins, a Trustee, is also a Partner at Knights Ple)

During the year £nil (2019:£890) was paid to Knights Plc for employment law advice.

In entering into the transaction the Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,
At the balance sheet date the amount due to Knights Ple was £Nil (2019 - £Nil),
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26 Rclated party transactions (continued)

Income related party transactions
During the year the academy made the following related party transactions:

Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocesc
(The Trust has a material interest in the Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocese)
During the year, the Trust received income totalling £851.312 (2019: £500,929).

Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Multi Academy Trust

(Bishop P McKinney is 4 Members of $t Thomas Aquinas Catholic Multi Acadermy Trust and Qur Lady of Lourdes Catholic
Multi Academy Trust)

During the year, the Trust received income totalling £3,180 (2019: £nil).

The Trust occupices land (including buildings) which arc owned by its Trustees who are the Nottinghum Roman Catholic
Diocese. ‘The Trustees are the providers of St Thomas Aquinas Catholic Mulii Academy Trust . The Trust occeuples the land
(and buildings) under a mere licence. This continuing pennission of their Diocese Trustees is pursuant to, and subjeet to, the
Trustees* charitable objects, and is pant of the Catholic Church’s contribution since 1847 to provide State funded education in
parinership with the State. The licence delegates aspeets of the management of the land (and buildings) to the Trust for the time
being, but does not vest any rights over the Jand in the Trust. The Trustees have given ao undertaking to the Sceretary of State
that they will not give the Trust tess than two years notice to terminate the occupation of the land (including buildings). Having
considered the factual matrlx under which the Trust is occupying the land (and buildings) the Trustees have concluded that the
valuc of the land and buildings occupied by the Trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the Trust,
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27 Agency arrangements

Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA, In the accounting periad ending 31 August 2020
the Trust received £41,523 and dishursed £41,822 from the fund.

28 Teaching school frading account

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000
Income
Direet Income
Other income 8§ 60
Other Income .
Fundraising and other trading activitics 20 19
* Total Income 105 79
Expenditure
Direct costs
Direct staft costs 41 56
Staff development 17 2
Other direct costs 2 9
Total direct costs ‘ 60 67
Other costs
Support stafY cosis 21 10
Technology costs N 2
Other suppon costs 3 i1
Total other costs 24 23
"Total Expenditure (84) (00)
Surplus/(Deficit) from all sources 21 (tn
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2019 (1 .
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2020 10 any
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